
       
       

CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING PACKET 

July 7, 2025 @ 6:00pm Heritage Hall in Smith Park  

 
1.  Call to Order:   Mayor Bill Cook
2.  Roll Call:   Clerk of Council 
3.  Invocation:    
4.  Pledge of Allegiance:  
5.  Action on Minutes:        06/16/25 Regular Meeting & 06/23/25 Special Meeting 
6.  Communications:           None 
7.  City Manager Report:    Attached 
8.     Committee Reports: None 
9.  Comments from Members of the Public: *Comments limited to 5 minutes or less

10. RESOLUTIONS: (None) 
 
11. ORDINANCES: (2-Intro; – 3-Action*) 
*A. Ordinance 2025-25 (Introduced on 06/16/25. Public Hearing, and Action Tonight) 
AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE TAX BUDGET FOR THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE, OHIO FOR THE FISCAL 
YEAR BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2026, AND SUBMITTING THE SAME TO THE AUDITOR OF CLARK COUNTY, 
OHIO 
*B. Ordinance 2025-26 (Introduced on 06/16/25. Public Hearing, and Action Tonight) 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 220.01 OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF NEW 
CARLISLE TO INCREASE THE CITY MANAGER’S DOLLAR AMOUNT THRESHOLD FOR ENTERING INTO 
CONTRACTS 
*C. Ordinance 2025-27 (Introduced on 06/16/25. Public Hearing, and Action Tonight) 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 2022-49 FOR THE PURPOSE OF INCREASING THE DOLLAR 
AMOUNT THRESHOLD OF THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SERVICE / ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER FOR 
ENTERING INTO CONTRACTS  
D. Ordinance 2025-28 (Introduction Tonight. Public Hearing, and Action on 07/21/25) 
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT FOR THE CITY’S OLD HIGH SERVICE PUMP BUILDING 
EQUIPMENT UPGRADES PROJECT 
E. Ordinance 2025-29 (Introduction Tonight. Public Hearing, and Action on 07/21/25) 
AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE SUBMISSION TO THE ELECTORS OF THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE 
PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ARTICLE V OF THE CITY CHARTER 
 

    12.  OTHER BUSINESS:  
o Additional City Business: 

§ Movie Night at Smith Park, Minecraft, July 19, 2025 @ dusk 
§ Open for Discussion on City Related Business 

 
13. Executive Session: Confidential business information of an applicant for economic development    
assistance (a unanimous vote is required determining an executive session is necessary to protect the 
interests of the applicant or the possible investment or expenditure of public funds to be made in 
connection with the economic development project) 
 
14. Return to Regular Session:   
15. Adjournment: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Next Regular Council Meeting is Monday, July 21, 2025 @ Heritage Hall in Smith Park. 6:00PM 



  6/16/25 

RECORD OF PROCEDING 

MINUTES: CITY OF NEW CARLISLE, OHIO  

REGULAR SESSION MEETING @ Heritage Hall on 6/16/25 @ 6:00 pm 

 

1. Call to Order: Mayor Cook calls the meeting to order. 

2. Roll Call: Stapleton calls the roll – Cook, Grow, Bahun, Shamy, Wright, Lindsey, Eggleston- 7 Members 

present 

3. Invocation: Chief Trusty 

4. Pledge of Allegiance: All are welcome to participate 

5. Action on Minutes: 

Action on Regular Session minutes of 6/2/25: 1st: Lindsey, 2nd: Shamy, YES: Wright, Lindsey, 

Eggleston, Cook, Grow, Bahun, Shamy NAY: 0 Accepted 7-0 

6. Communications: None 

7. City Manager’s Report:  

 
 

 

8. Committee Reports:  

 
 

• Pot holes are being worked on then the city will plan to do a wide sweep. 

• Disc Golf – design is done, currently working on quotes from contractors. 

• Carlisle Park – security investments – cameras, lighting, general policing discussions are 

occurring. 

  
• Still accepting applications for Fire, EMS, and Paramedics 



  6/16/25 

• We do have captain Garth Musgrove that will now be a dedicated fire inspector. He will 

be able to check all businesses once per year. Been with New Carlisle for 10 years. 

• Council questioned how much manpower it takes to run both medics. We do have the 

manpower, but currently not the money. It takes approximately $360k to run the 2nd 

medic. 

 

 
• Code Enforcement will be working with the fire inspector also 

• 503 N. Church – new property owner closed on this property last week and plans to 

build a new home. 

• Councilwoman Wright questioned line item for permit for planning board review, Mr. 

Moore explained 

• Council also requested that Mr. Moore begin sharing any new business happening 

around town – for example the activity on 235, this was explained that Modern Day 

Flooring is still working on retention pond details. 

• Open house at Monroe Meadows will be held 6/27 from noon to 2pm, they will be 

serving lunch, all council are welcome. 

 

               
 

No Comment 

 

 
 

No Comment 

 



  6/16/25 

  

 
 

• Several council members expressed complaints received from residents about the 

current tax company (CCA) being used. Explaining they are rude, any way to help this 

situation? 

• Additional discussion on the cost of using CCA, as well as other companies that can be 

researched to take over these duties. 

• Council requested Mr. Hall to give a courtesy call to CCA to ensure they are aware of 

many complaints, if the situation does not get better considering looking at other 

companies. 

• Reminder to citizens, Colleen Rhea is also available to be a ‘middleman’ in these 

situations, please call and let her know. 

Motion to accept Finance Report: 1st: Lindsey 2nd: Shamy YES: Wright, Lindsey, Eggleston, Cook, 

Grow, Bahun, Shamy NAY: 0 – Accepted 7-0 

 

 
Motion to Accept the Mayor’s Court Report, 1st: Lindsey 2nd: Shamy YES: Wright, Lindsey, 

Eggleston, Cook, Grow, Bahun, Shamy NAY: 0 – Accepted 7-0 

 

Mr. Hall began reviewing the City Manager’s report: 

• Discussion on the additional 6th deputy versus the addition of a Sergeant, and the different 

roles and responsibilities of each of these titles. Pros and cons of a deputy or road sergeant. 

Council would like to receive more information regarding the duties of these roles to help 

determine which of these would be most beneficial for the city. 



  6/16/25 

• Active Alert – app that is being used by the Fire department, Chief explain the app and will 

follow up with the county to see if Council is eligible to have access to this app. 

• Social Services working group will meet again on 6/23 at 6:00 – will have some additional 

community partners planning to attend. 

• Fireworks – scheduled for 6/28 at dusk. Will be set off at the ball fields and will host food 

trucks and entertainment. Reminder the pool will be open late for the fireworks. 

• Newsletter – Quarterly newsletter was sent to the printer and should begin delivery June 

30th – July 1st. 

9. Comments from Members of the Public (Comments less than 5 minutes) 

➢ Janel Zimmerman, 219 Prentice Dr: Discussion on water pressure situation that a neighbor is 

experiencing. Plumber investigated and believes it is due to city water. Since the new water lines, 

some residents have noticed pressure reduction – will follow up with Mr. Kitko 

➢ Dylan Dupuis, 122 N. Clay Street: Noticing a lot of activity at the NC sports and fitness. Council 

explained this building was sold to a Health Clinic – they are currently remodeling the old 

building, and it will be changed to a medical building. 

➢ Valerie Garcia, 821 Bayberry Dr: Represented a group interested in hosting a peaceful planned 

demonstration for immigrant’s rights. Discussion on location, guidelines, permits needed, 

expectations. Mr. Hall, Mr. Moore, and Mrs. Lowery will work together with this group for 

planning. 

10. RESOLUTIONS: (1-Intro; – 1-Action*) 

*A. Resolution 2025-06R (Introduction, Public Hearing, and Action Tonight)  

A RESOLUTION SUBMITTING AN ISSUE CONCERNING THE CARRYING OF FIREARMS BY CITY 

EMPLOYEES AND OFFICIALS FOR AN ADVISORY ELECTION AT THE NOVEMBER 4, 2025, ELECTION. 1st: 

Shamy 2nd: Lindsey. YES: Cook, Grow, Bahun, Shamy, Wright, Lindsey NAY: Eggleston Accepted 6-1  

Ex: February proposed motion to add to the ballot. 

11. ORDINANCES: (3-Intro; – 2-Action*) 

*A. Ordinance 2025-23 (Introduced 06/02/25. Public Hearing, and Action Tonight)  

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING A SERVICE CONTRACT WITH STRYKER FOR THE MAINTENANCE AND 

REPAIR OF FIRE AND EMS EQUIPMENT. 1st: Lindsey 2nd: Shamy YES: Wright, Lindsey, Eggleston, 

Cook, Grow, Bahun, Shamy NAY: 0 Accepted 7-0  Ex: Includes 2x per year PM’s, Free Battery 

replacements, Covers some expensive equipment replacements with PM program. 

*B. Ordinance 2025-24 (Introduced on 06/02/25. Public Hearing, and Action Tonight)  

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A TAX INCREMENT FINANCING COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT, A 

DECLARATION OF COVENANTS AND CONDITIONS, AND A TAX INCREMENT FINANCING AGREEMENT 

IN CONNECTION WITH THE RESERVE AT HONEY CREEK PROJECT. 1st: Shamy 2nd: Eggleston1st: Shamy 

2nd: Eggleston YES: Cook, Grow, Bahun, Shamy, Wright, Lindsey, Eggleston NAY: 0 Accepted 7-0. Ex: 

Greg Daniels was present to address and answer questions regarding the previous ordinance to 

create the TIP agreement, this includes how the money can be spent. 

C. Ordinance 2025-25 (Introduction Tonight, Public Hearing, and Action on 07/07/25)  

AN ORDINANCE ADOPTING THE TAX BUDGET FOR THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE, OHIO FOR THE FISCAL 

YEAR BEGINNING JANUARY 1, 2026, AND SUBMITTING THE SAME TO THE AUDITOR OF CLARK 

COUNTY, OHIO  

D. Ordinance 2025-26 (Introduction Tonight. Public Hearing, and Action on 07/07/25)  

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 220.01 OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF NEW 

CARLISLE TO INCREASE THE CITY MANAGER’S DOLLAR AMOUNT THRESHOLD FOR ENTERING INTO 

CONTRACTS  

E. Ordinance 2025-27 (Introduction Tonight. Public Hearing, and Action on 07/07/25)  

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 2022-49 FOR THE PURPOSE OF INCREASING THE DOLLAR 

AMOUNT THRESHOLD OF THE DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC SERVICE / ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER FOR 

ENTERING INTO CONTRACTS  

 

12. Other Business: 

➢ Additional City Business 

▪ City offices Closed: June 19th to Observe Juneteenth 

▪ Movie Night at Smith Part, showing IF on June 21st at dusk 

▪ Community Garage Sale June 28 & 29, 2025 

▪ Community Fireworks June 28, 2025 @ dusk 

▪ Open for Discussion on City Related Business 

 



  6/16/25 

13. Executive Session:  

14. Return to Regular Session:  

15. Adjournment: 1st Lindsey 2nd Shamy @ 7:37 pm 

YES: Wright, Lindsey, Eggleston, Cook, Grow, Bahun, Shamy NAY: 0 Accepted 7-0 

 

 

 

Mayor Bill Cook      Clerk of Council Christine Stapleton 

 



  6/23/25 

RECORD OF PROCEDING 
MINUTES: CITY OF NEW CARLISLE, OHIO  

WORK SESSION / SPECIAL MEETING @ Heritage Hall on 6/23/25 @ 6:00 pm 
 

1. Call to Order: Mayor Cook calls the mee2ng to order. 
2. Roll Call: Stapleton calls the roll – Cook, Grow, Bahun, Shamy, Wright, Lindsey, Eggleston 

7 members Present 
3. Invoca6on: Chief Trusty 
4. Pledge of Allegiance: All are welcome to par2cipate 
5. Ac6on on Minutes: None 
6. Communica6ons: None 
7. City Manager’s Report: None 
8. Commi@ee Reports: N/A 
9. Comments from Members of the Public (Comments less than 5 minutes) 
10. Resolu6ons: None 
11. Ordinances: None  
12. Other Business:  

• Addi2onal City Business 
o Police Sergeant Discussion – Chief Lane and Sgt. Lehman were present to discuss 

some benefits of New Carlisle having a Working Sgt in place. The full descrip2on of 
du2es have not been developed. The intent is to have this role more interac2ve with 
the Council and the depu2es on all shiXs. It was agreed that this posi2on should be 
a working sergeant, helping to follow up on calls and help to support the depu2es as 
needed. Discussion on the 2meline to get this posi2on filled. Mr. Hall requested if 
council agrees with the posi2on, to pass a mo2on and then he will work with the 
law director to have legisla2on drawn up for the council full approval. Addi2onal 
discussion on poten2al for over2me to ensure 24/7 coverage of the city. 
Mo2on to have the City Manager move forward to fill the approved 6th deputy 
posi2on with a working sergeant role ASAP or within the next two months  1st: 
Lindsey 2nd: Shamy YES: Wright, Lindsey, Eggleston, Cook, Grow, Bahun, Shamy NAY: 
0 Accepted 7-0 

o Social Services Strategic Work Session 
§ Mo2on to suspend rules of council for open discussion, 1st Lindsey 2nd 

Shamy, YES: Wright, Lindsey, Eggleston, Cook, Grow, Bahun, Shamy NAY: 0 
Accepted 7-0 

§ Members present for open discussion:  
• City of New Carlisle: Chief Trusty (EMS/Fire), Deputy O’Brien (Sheriff 

Deputy), Bryan Moore (Planning Director), April Lowery (Execu2ve 
Assistant to the City Manager), Don Hall (City Manager) 

• Members of Non-Profit organiza6ons and local churches: Family 
and Youth Ini2a2ves - Niki Stefanow, Quest Youth Development 
Center – Julie Driskill, Sacred Heart Parish – Bethany Hall and 
Michael Barclay, Church of the Brethren – Eric Schmie, First United 
Methodist – Bob Lybarger, and several residents of New Carlisle 

§ Mr. Hall explained the purpose of this mee2ng to gather and discuss the 
current social services crisis New Carlisle is dealing with currently. A brief 
recap of the previous mee2ng to bring all members up to speed with 
discussions. 

§ Mr. Hall shared more recent experiences of issues in the city dealing with 
human suffering. 

§ Expressed the hope of this mee2ng is to create a commission of at least 5 
residents of our community, these will include a President and Vice 
President role. The commission will hold regular mee2ngs following the new 
Boards and Commissions handbook – and will help to serve the community 
in triage of their needs. 

§ Mr. Moore stated he would be suppor2ng the government role on the 
commission, and the need for coordinators for each area of need would be 
helpful. 



  6/23/25 

§ Mayor Cook reminded everyone that the need for this started aXer the 
Second Harvest Food Bank stopped coming to New Carlisle, and aXer 
hearing from Code enforcement of the issues that our ci2zens were 
struggling with, as well as recent issues that were brought to the aeen2on 
of Council by the City Manager. 

§ Kelly Dupuis – a previous small business owner in New Carlisle spoke about 
her struggles with homelessness and difficul2es trying to find the resources 
needed for transporta2on, safety, food, and work. 

§ Open discussion on how ci2zens can be iden2fied as needing help and 
connected with the proper resources. This needs to be a partnership 
between the community organiza2ons to help connect those in need. 

§ Bob Lybarger spoke of similar programs in nearby communi2es that should 
be inves2gated for organiza2on and benefits, such as Partners of Hope, FISH, 
and Helping Hands 

§ Many of the local churches have so many programs and resources available 
that many don’t know about. 

§ These mee2ngs have brought a lot of great ideas to help many people, these 
conversa2ons have got a lot of people thinking, which is great. We are in this 
together and will succeed. 

§ A sugges2on for each church and organiza2on to think about having a 
representa2ve to serve on the commission and to think about what 
specialty your church / organiza2on can provide for this group 

§ July 1st all applica2ons must be turned in, to be prepared and included in the 
council packet. 

§ Members of council cannot serve on the commission, but all are willing to 
help and support. If you need any of them, please reach out to them. 
 

o City Offices Closed July 4th for Independence Day 
o Open for Discussion on City Related Business 

13. Execu6ve Session: None 
14. Return to Regular Session: None 
15. Adjournment: 1st Lindsey 2nd Shamy @ 7:38 pm 

YES: Wright, Lindsey, Eggleston, Cook, Grow, Bahun, Shamy NAY: 0 Accepted 7-0 
 
 
 
 

Mayor Bill Cook 
 
 
__________________________ 
 
 
Clerk of Council Chris2ne Stapleton 
 
 
___________________________ 



 
  City Manager Report  

July 7, 2025 
 
 

A. DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS 
 

• The Following Departmental Reports will be given at the next City Council meeting that will be held 
on Monday, July 21, 2025; Finance, Public Service, Fire/EMS, Police, Planning & Zoning, Mayor's 
Court Report. 

 
 
 
     B. INFORMATIONAL ITEMS 
 

o   Upcoming Legislation 
■ Amendment to Police Contract 

o Discussion Topics 
■    Strategic Social Service Commission appointments at 7/21/25 Meeting  
■    6/28/25 Weekend Update 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Attachment Summary: None 
                                      
                                    
 

 
                                              

 
       Motion summary: None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 















































Wright Y N
Bahun Y N
Lindsey Y N
Mayor Cook Y N
V. Mayor Eggleston Y N
Shamy Y N
Grow Y N

Totals:

Pass Fail

 
 
 

ORDINANCE 2025-26 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 220.01 OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY 
OF NEW CARLISLE TO INCREASE THE CITY MANAGER’S DOLLAR AMOUNT THRESHOLD 

FOR ENTERING INTO CONTRACTS 
 

WHEREAS, Section 220.01 of the City of New Carlisle Codified Ordinances currently grants the 
City Manager the authority to enter into contracts, involving the expenditure of funds equal to or less than 
$35,000.00, which bind the City of New Carlisle; and  

 
WHEREAS, Section 220.01 also provides that the City Manager’s dollar amount threshold for 

entering into contracts may be amended from time to time; and 
 
WHEREAS, Council desires to increase the City Manager’s dollar amount threshold because of the 

rising costs of many government contracts and for the purpose of reducing some legislative processes and 
their associated expenses. 
 
      NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE HEREBY ORDAINS that Section 
220.01 of the Codified Ordinances be amended as follows: 
 
220.01   AUTHORITY TO ENTER INTO CONTRACTS. 
 
(a)   The City Manager is hereby granted the authority to enter into contracts which bind the City for any 
purpose which involves the expenditure of funds of the City equal to or less than $35,000.00 $50,000.00, 
as the same may be amended from time to time. 
 
(b)   All contracts entered into on behalf of the City pursuant to the authority granted in subsection (a) 
hereof are hereby ratified as fully and completely as if ratified by a separate ordinance enacted 
specifically therefor. 
 

Passed this ________ day of _________________, 2025.  
 
 

_____________________________ 
               Bill Cook, Mayor 
 

_____________________________ 
               Christine Stapleton, Clerk of Council 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________ 
Jacob M. Jeffries, DIRECTOR OF LAW 
        
Introduction and First Reading:  06/16/2025 
Second Reading and Action:      07/07/2025 
Effective Date of Legislation:    07/22/2025                                   



 
 
 

ORDINANCE 2025-27 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 2022-49 FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
INCREASING THE DOLLAR AMOUNT THRESHOLD OF THE DIRECTOR OF 

PUBLIC SERVICE / ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER FOR ENTERING INTO 
CONTRACTS  

 
WHEREAS, Section 3 of Ordinance 2022-49, which such ordinance was passed by 

City Council on October 3, 2022, granted Howard Kitko the authority, as the Director of 
Public Service / Assistant City Manager, to enter into contracts that bind the City, solely 
for the departments managed by him, at a dollar amount threshold equal to the City 
Manager’s dollar amount threshold set by City Council; and   

 
WHEREAS, Council has decided to increase the City Manager’s dollar amount 

threshold from $35,000 to $50,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, Council also desires to increase the dollar amount threshold of the 

Director of Public Service / Assistant City Manager because of the rising costs of many 
government contracts and for the purpose of reducing some legislative processes and 
their associated expenses; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Ordinance clarifies that the dollar amount threshold of the Director 

of Public Service / Assistant City Manager is likewise being increased from $35,000 to 
$50,000.  
 
      NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE HEREBY ORDAINS 
that Section 3 of Ordinance 2022-49 be amended as follows: 
 
Section 3. Mr. Kitko, as the Director of Public Service / Assistant City Manager, 

shall have the authority to enter into contracts that bind the City, solely for 
the departments managed by him, at a dollar amount threshold equal to the 
City Manager’s dollar amount threshold set by City Council, which such 
dollar amount threshold is currently $50,000.00, and after legal review of 
form and sufficiency by the City’s Law Director. 

 
 

Passed this ________ day of _________________, 2025.  
 
 

_____________________________ 
                    Bill Cook, Mayor 
 

_____________________________ 
                    Christine Stapleton, Clerk of Council 



Wright Y N
Bahun Y N
Lindsey Y N
Mayor Cook Y N
V. Mayor Eggleston Y N
Shamy Y N
Grow Y N

Totals:

Pass Fail

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________ 
Jacob M. Jeffries, DIRECTOR OF LAW 
 
 
        
Introduction and First Reading:  06/16/2025 
Second Reading and Action:      07/07/2025 
Effective Date of Legislation:    07/22/2025                                   

 



 
 

ORDINANCE 2025-28 
 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT FOR THE CITY’S OLD HIGH 
SERVICE PUMP BUILDING EQUIPMENT UPGRADES PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of New Carlisle must replace certain pump motors at the Old High Service 

Pump Building with variable frequency drive motors, and install associated variable frequency drives, 
disconnects, new electrical services, lighting and HVAC for the purpose of meeting current Federal EPA 
and Ohio EPA guidelines (“Old High Service Pump Building Equipment Upgrades Project” or “Project”); 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of New Carlisle was awarded an Ohio Public Works Commission grant 

from the State of Ohio Capital Improvements Fund for up to 59% of the Project’s cost, which such grant 
is not to exceed $148,975.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City has reviewed and evaluated the bid(s) for the Project; and  
 
WHEREAS, the lowest and best bid for the Project was submitted by Layne Christensen 

Company, which is the responsible bidder who submitted the lowest responsive bid; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to accept Layne Christensen Company’s bid; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the amount of Layne Christensen Company’s bid is $204,150.00; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the total cost of the Project could be greater than $204,150.00 due to unforeseen 
circumstances and change orders, but the total price of the Project will not exceed $230,000.00. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE HEREBY ORDAINS that: 
 
Section 1. The lowest and best bid, which is from the responsible bidder who submitted the lowest 

responsive bid, is hereby declared to be the bid submitted by Layne Christensen Company per 
the attached bid tabulation sheet. 

 
Section 2. The City Manager, or the Director of Public Service/Assistant City Manager as the City 

Manager’s designee, is authorized and directed to enter into an agreement and to execute all 
related documents with the successful bidder, Layne Christensen Company, for the Old High 
Service Pump Building Equipment Upgrades Project in accordance with the bid 
specifications. 

 
Section 3. The total price of the Project shall not exceed $230,000.00.  
 

Passed this ________ day of _____________, 2025 
 

 
     ___________________________ 
     Bill Cook, MAYOR 

 
     ___________________________ 
     Christine Stapleton, CLERK 

         
  



Wright Y N
Bahun Y N
Lindsey Y N
Mayor Cook Y N
V. Mayor Eggleston Y N
Shamy Y N
Grow Y N

Totals:

Pass Fail

   
 
 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:  

 
___________________________________                    
Jacob M. Jeffries, DIRECTOR OF LAW           
                                                                                                         
 
 
 
Introduction and First Reading:  07/07/2025 
Second Reading and Action:      07/21/2025 
Effective Date of Legislation:    08/05/2025                                   
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Dear Mr. Kitko: 
 
 
Enclosed are the sign in sheet, bid tabulation, bid analysis, and the original bidding documents 
for the Old High Service Pump Building Equipment Upgrade REBID. 
 
Through our evaluation of all bid documents submitted, Layne Christensen Company, of 
Middletown, Ohio, appears to be the lowest, responsible bidder.  
 
Please execute and return the enclosed Notice of Award, at which time we will forward 
Contract Documents, along with the executed Notice of Award, to Layne Christensen Company 
 
If you should have any questions or concerns, please feel free to contact us. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Andrew T. Shuman 
Project Manager 
 
 

Date Attention Address 
June 11, 2025 Howard Kitko City of New Carlisle 

331 S. Church Street 
New Carlisle, Ohio 45344 

Subject 
Old High Service Pump Building Equipment Upgrade REBID 
CLA-NCA-2405 





  
ITEM UNIT OF APPROX. UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL
NO. DESCRIPTION MEASURE QTY. COST COST COST COST

1 50 HORSEPOWER INVERTER DUTY MOTORS (REPLACE MOTORS ON EXISTING PUMPS) EACH 2 $14,950.00 $29,900.00 $16,850.00 $33,700.00
2 50 HORSEPOWER VARIABLE FREQUENCY DRIVES  (REPLACE STARTERS ON EXISTING PUMPS) EACH 2 $22,000.00 $44,000.00 $18,240.00 $36,480.00
3 25 HORSEPOWER INVERTER DUTY MOTORS (REPLACE MOTORS ON EXISTING PUMPS) EACH 2 $10,900.00 $21,800.00 $13,290.00 $26,580.00
4 25 HORSEPOWER VARIABLE FREQUENCY DRIVES  (REPLACE STARTERS ON EXISTING PUMPS) EACH 2 $8,000.00 $16,000.00 $7,460.00 $14,920.00
5 PUMP MOTOR DISCONNECTS (REPLACE EXISTING) EACH 4 $6,000.00 $24,000.00 $7,540.00 $30,160.00
6 LOW POWER PANEL (REPLACE EXISTING) EACH 1 $25,000.00 $25,000.00 $29,860.00 $29,860.00
8 CONDUIT AND WIRE (REPLACE EXISTING) LUMP 1 $35,000.00 $35,000.00 $31,050.00 $31,050.00

11 DESIGN AND PERMITTING LUMP 1 $4,300.00 $4,300.00 $1,400.00 $1,400.00
TOTAL $200,000.00 $204,150.00

City of New Carlisle
Bid Tabulation

June 11, 2025
Old High Service Pump Building Equipment Upgrade REBID Layne Christensen Company

Middletown, Ohio



 Bid Analysis 
City of New Carlisle 

Old High Service Pump Building Equipment Upgrade REBID 
 

WWW.CHOICEONEENGINEERING.COM 
Sidney, OH | Loveland, OH  

 
 

La
yn

e 
C

hr
ist

en
se

n 
C

om
pa

ny
 

Unit & Total Bid Correspond    

Receipt of Addenda N/A 

Signature Page      

Bid Security       

Personal Property Tax       

State of Ohio EEO Requirements  

 
 



Agreement Forms 
A-1 

 

NOTICE OF AWARD 

 

TO BIDDER: 

 You are notified that Owner has accepted your Bid dated 6/10/2025   for the above Project, 
and that you are the Successful Bidder and are awarded a Contract for: 

Design, permitting, labor and materials needed for the replacement of electric, pumps, and controls in 
the well house at the City of New Carlisle Water Treatment Plant.  ______________________________  
 

The Contract Price of the awarded Contract is:  $204,150.00    

 One unexecuted counterparts of the Agreement accompany this Notice of Award, and a copy of the 
Contract Documents has been made available to Bidder electronically. The Drawings will be delivered 
separately from the Contract Documents.  

 You must comply with the following conditions precedent within 15 days of the date of receipt of 
this Notice of Award: 
 

1. Deliver to Owner the Agreement, fully executed by Bidder. 

2. Deliver with the executed Agreement the Contract security and insurance documentation as 
specified in the Instructions to Bidders and General Conditions, Articles 2 and 6. 

 Failure to comply with these conditions within the time specified will entitle Owner to consider you 
in default, annul this Notice of Award, and declare your Bid security forfeited.   

 Within ten days after you comply with the above conditions, Owner will return to you one fully 
executed counterpart of the Agreement. 

Owner: City of New Carlisle 

  
                         Authorized Signature 
By: Howard Kitko 

Title: Service Director/Asst. City Manager 

Date of Issuance:  

 
  

Owner:  City of New Carlisle 

Project: Old High Service Pump Building Equipment Upgrade REBID 

Bidder: Layne Christensen Company 

Bidder’s Address: 6451 Germantown Road, Middletown, Ohio 45042 



	

	

 

ORDINANCE 2025-29 
AN ORDINANCE PROVIDING FOR THE SUBMISSION TO THE ELECTORS OF THE 

CITY OF NEW CARLISLE PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ARTICLE V OF THE CITY 
CHARTER 

WHEREAS, Article XI, Section 11.04 of the City Charter requires that a Charter Review 
Commission (“Commission”) meet every eight (8) years for the purpose of reviewing the Charter and 
recommending to Council such alterations, revisions and amendments, if any, to the Charter that the 
Commission deems desirable; and  

WHEREAS, said Commission was appointed in accordance with Section 11.04 and has made 
recommendations to Council for amendments to the Charter; and 

WHEREAS, Council has also reviewed the Charter and decided that certain other amendments to 
the Charter may be necessary or desirable; and 

WHEREAS, Council has determined that amendments to Article V of the Charter should be 
submitted to the electors of the City at the election to be held on November 4, 2025. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY OF NEW CARLISLE HEREBY ORDAINS, at least five 
(5) of the members of Council elected thereto concurring, that: 

Section 1.  The question of the amendments to Article V of the City of New Carlisle Charter shall 
be submitted as a single ballot item, to a vote of the qualified electors of the City at the November 
4, 2025 general election, at the regular hours and regular places of voting in the City.  If approved 
by a majority vote at said election, Article V of the City Charter shall be amended as shown on 
Exhibit A and shall become effective thirty (30) days after its adoption by the voters. 

Section 2.  The ballot for the question shall be titled: “New Carlisle City Charter Article V 
Amendments Ballot,” and the question to be submitted on the ballot shall be in substantially the 
same form as shown on the attached Exhibit B. 

Section 3.  The Director of Law is authorized to amend the ballot language as may be necessary 
or as may be required by the Clark County Board of Elections or the Ohio Secretary of State, for 
ballot purposes. 

Section 4.  RC § 3505.56 requires that when condensed text is used on a ballot question, issue or 
amendment, the full text of the proposed question, issue or amendment, together with the 
percentage of affirmative votes necessary for passage, shall be posted in each polling place.  The 
attached Exhibit A shall be used as the full text of the proposed ballot item at each polling place. 

Section 5.  The Clark County Board of Elections shall give public notice of the time and place of 
holding the election on the proposed Charter amendments at least ten (10) days prior to the day of 
the election in accordance with RC § 3501.03. 

Section 6.  The Clerk of Council is directed to publish the full text of the proposed Charter 
amendments once a week for not less than two (2) consecutive weeks in a newspaper of general 
circulation in the City or as provided in RC § 7.16, with the first publication being at least fifteen 
(15) days prior to the election in accordance with Ohio Constitution, Article XVIII, Section 9 and 
RC § 731.211. 



	

	

Wright Y N
Bahun Y N
Lindsey Y N
Mayor Cook Y N
V. Mayor Eggleston Y N
Shamy Y N
Grow Y N

Totals:

Pass Fail

Section 7.  The Clerk of Council is directed to certify a copy of this Ordinance to the Clark 
County Board of Elections. 

Section 8.  If the amendments to Article V of the Charter of the City of New Carlisle are 
approved by a majority vote, the Clerk of Council shall certify a copy of the amendments to the 
Ohio Secretary of State within thirty (30) days of the election. 

Section 9.  It is found that all formal actions of this Council concerning and relating to the 
adoption of this Ordinance were in an open meeting of this Council, and that all deliberations of 
this Council that resulted in this formal action were in meetings open to the public in compliance 
with all legal requirements, including RC § 121.22 and the Rules of Council. 

Passed this ____________ day of ____________________________, 2025. 

	

 
                               _______________________ 

              Bill Cook, MAYOR 
 

         
                           _________________________ 

                               Christine Stapleton, CLERK 
        APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________       
Jacob M. Jeffries, DIRECTOR OF LAW  
 

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

	

Introduction and First Reading:  07/07/2025 
Second Reading and Action:      07/21/2025 
Effective Date of Legislation:    08/05/2025                                   
  



	

	

          Ordinance 2025-29 
Exhibit A 

CITY OF NEW CARLISLE BALLOT ITEM ___ 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ARTICLE V OF THE CITY’S CHARTER 

A majority affirmative vote is needed for passage. 

New text is shown in italicized print.  Deleted text is shown in stricken print. 

 

ARTICLE V – CITY MANAGER 

Section 5.01.   Employment; Qualifications; Compensation. 

   The Council, by a majority vote of its total membership, shall appoint a City Manager for a 
definite or indefinite term and fix his/her compensation in accordance with experience, executive 
and administrative qualifications. The recommended qualifications are construed to be at least 
one of the following: 

   (a)    A graduate degree in public administration or a related field; 

   (a) (b)  Two (2) Five (5) years of experience as a City Manager, assistant City Manager or in a 
significant City Management position; or 

   (b)   A college degree in public administration or related field; or 

   (c)   A combination of experience in municipal management and college training in this 
professional field. 

The applicant need not be a resident of the City at the time of employment, but may reside 
outside the City while employed only with the approval of the Council. Council shall have the 
final say in determining if the qualifications are met. 

Section 5.02.   Powers and Duties of the City Manager. 

   The City Manager shall be the chief administrative officer of the City. The Manager shall be 
responsible to the Council for the administration of all City affairs required by or under this 
Charter, and shall have the following powers and duties: 

   (a)   To appoint, and when deemed necessary for the good of the City to suspend or remove 
any City employee or appointive administrative officer provided for by or under this Charter, 
except as otherwise provided by law, this Charter, or personnel rules adopted pursuant to this 
Charter. The Manager may authorize any subordinate administrative officer to exercise these 
powers with respect to subordinates in that officer's department, office, or agency. 

   (b)   To direct and supervise the administration of all departments, offices and agencies of the 
City, except as otherwise provided by the Charter, or by Council as authorized by the Charter or 
by law. 

   (c)   To attend all Council meetings, unless excused by Council, and shall have the right to take 
part in discussion, but may not vote. 



	

	

   (d)   To see that all laws, provisions of this Charter, and acts of the Council, subject to 
enforcement by the Manager or by subordinate officers are faithfully executed. 

   (e)   To submit to the Council and make available to the public in the manner as determined by 
ordinance of Council, a complete report on the finances and administrative activities of the City 
at the end of each fiscal year. 

   (f)   To present, if required by Council, an inventory of all City property and holdings. 

   (g)   Make available and accessible such other reports as the City Council may require 
concerning operations.  To make other reports as the Council may require concerning the 
operations of City departments, offices and agencies subject to the Manager's direction and 
supervision, and to make such recommendations to the Council concerning the affairs of the City 
as judged desirable. 

   (h)   To prepare and submit the annual budget and capital program to the Council, and keep the 
Council fully advised as to the financial condition and future needs of the City. 

   (i)   To prepare all contracts in cooperation with the Director of Law. No contract or agreement 
shall be legal until ratified by ordinance or resolution of Council.  No franchise shall be legal 
until ratified by ordinance of Council. 

   (j)    Advise Council on City policy recommendations and development. 

   (k)     Make recommendations to Council concerning the affairs of the City and facilitate the 
work of the Council in developing policy. 

   (l)    Provide staff support services for the Mayor and other members of Council. 

   (m)     Assist the Council to develop long-term goals for the City and strategies to implement 
those goals. 

   (n)     Promote partnerships among Council, staff and community members in developing 
public policy and building a sense of community. 

   (o)     Encourage and provide staff support for partnerships with community organizations for 
regional and intergovernmental cooperation. 

   (j)   (p)  To perform such other duties as are specified in this Charter or may be required by 
Council under its Charter authority. 

   (k)   (q)  To declare an emergency and utilize the services and equipment of any and all City 
departments, agencies, and their compensated employees to perform necessary functions of the 
City. The Manager shall report the use of this emergency action to Council at the next Council 
meeting. 

Section 5.03.   Relation of Council to City Manager. 

   Council has an ongoing responsibility to ensure that the City Manager and staff are 
accountable for their actions.  The Council shall also monitor the policy proposals submitted by 
the City Manager and the administrative actions taken by the City Manager and staff to ensure 
that the Council’s expectations are being met and the acceptable standards are being 
maintained.  Except for the purpose of inquiry or investigation, the members of the Council shall 
deal with the administrative employees of the City solely through the City Manager. 



	

	

Section 5.06.   Notification of Resignation. 

   The Manager shall be required to give Council no less than thirty (30) sixty (60) days 
notification of intent to resign from the position.  

  



	

	

 

          Ordinance 2025-29 
          Exhibit B 

Proposed Charter Amendment 

City of New Carlisle 

A majority affirmative vote is necessary for passage. 

Shall Article V, Sections 5.01, 5.02, 5.03 and 5.06 of the Charter of the City of New Carlisle be 
amended as follows: 

Specify that a majority vote of all of Council is necessary to appoint a City Manager.  Change a 
recommended qualification of the City Manager from a college degree to a graduate degree.  
Change a recommended qualification of the City Manager from 2 to 5 years of experience.  Add 
assistant City Manager as a position that provides experience.  Clarify the City Manager’s power 
to direct and supervise administration. Indicate the reports the City Manager must make 
available.  Add the following City Manager powers and duties: advise on policy 
recommendations and development, make recommendations about affairs and facilitate policy 
development, provide staff support services, assist in developing long-term goals and strategies, 
promote partnerships, and encourage and provide staff support for partnerships.  Add that 
Council will ensure that the City Manager and staff are accountable, and will monitor policy 
proposals and administrative actions.  Change the City Manager’s notification of resignation 
from a minimum of 30 days to a minimum of 60 days?         

YES 

NO 


	AwardRecommendation.pdf
	BidTab_CLA-NCA-2405.pdf
	Sheet1





